LOANS

Several loan funds are available to law students. In most cases loans are granted only to students who have completed at least one year of residence in the School.

The Ernst Freund Loan Fund was established in 1922 by the late Professor Ernst Freund, and since his death has been augmented by other contributions.

The James Parker Hall Loan Fund was established by the alumni of the Law School, in memory of the late Dean Hall.

The Floyd R. Mechem Loan Fund for Law Students was established in 1921 by the late Professor Floyd R. Mechem.

The Anna Louise Raymond Loan Fund was established by Anna Louise Raymond in 1932 for the benefit of students in the Law School, preference to be given to women students.

The Julius Rosenthal Fund was established in 1903 by Judge Julian W. Mack in memory of Julius Rosenthal.

The Clark B. Whittier Law Loan Fund was established by Professor Clark B. Whittier in recognition of his previous connection with the University of Chicago Law School as a member of its Faculty.

University Tuition Loan Funds.—The University has established a loan fund from which loans may be made to students in need of financial assistance. The amount of the loan is limited to one-half of the student’s tuition charge. The loans bear interest at 5 per cent, are not for over one year, but may on proper showing be extended.

X. FELLOWSHIPS

The Law School has available a number of fellowships and tutorial fellowships. Applications should be made not later than February 15.

The James Nelson Raymond Fellowship was created in 1933 and 1934 by Anna Louise Raymond in memory of her husband, James Nelson Raymond. The annual income is awarded to a research student in law whose record gives evidence of a capacity for distinguished work in legal research.

University Fellowships.—A limited number of fellowships are reserved for research students in law.

Tutorial Fellowships are awarded to law graduates whose records give evidence of a capacity for distinguished work in legal research and ability to supervise law students in writing and legal research. These fellowships have been in the amount of $1,800 each. For the year 1939–40 tutorial fellowships were awarded to Maxwell S. Isenbergh, A.B., Cornell University, LL.B., LL.M., Harvard Law School; Emerson Spies, A.B., Hobart
XI. HONORS AND PRIZES

The Chicago Chapter of the Order of the Coif is an honor society founded to encourage scholarship and to advance the ethical standards of the legal profession. Its members are selected each spring from the 10 per cent of the graduating class who rank highest in scholarship. In 1938–39 the following were elected to membership: Irving I. Axelrad, A.B., University of Chicago; Paul M. Barnes, A.B., Monmouth College; Ritchie G. Davis, A.B., Ohio Wesleyan University; John A. Eckler, A.B., Ohio Wesleyan University; Aaron Levy, A.B., College of the City of New York.

The Order of Wig and Robe offers an annual scholarship prize of $100 to the student who attains the highest standing in the work of the first two years. Students under both the Four-Year and the Three-Year programs are eligible for the award. In 1939–40 the Wig and Robe prize was awarded to Walter J. Blum of the Class of 1941.

The Nu Beta Epsilon fraternity has donated to the Law School a scholarship cup. A small replica of the cup is awarded annually to the student who attains the highest standing in the work of the first year, and his name is engraved upon the scholarship cup. Students under both the Four-Year and the Three-Year programs are eligible for the award. In 1939–40 the Nu Beta Epsilon prize was awarded to Robert B. Hummel of the Class of 1942.

The Nathan Burkan Memorial Prize, established in 1937 by the American Society of Composers, Authors, and Publishers in memory of Nathan Burkan, is an annual prize of $100 awarded to a member of the Senior class for the best paper upon copyright law.

XII. STUDENT ACTIVITIES

The University of Chicago Law Review, founded in 1933, is published by the School under the management of a Board of Editors composed of students. In the autumn of each year the fifteen members of the second-year classes who rank highest in scholarship are invited to become competitors for election to the staff of the Review. From this group the Board of Editors chooses the editorial and business staff of the Review.

The Board of Editors for 1939–40 was composed of the following: El-Roy D. Golding, Editor-in-Chief; Bernard Apple, Robert J. Janda, Harold I. Kahen, Francis J. Seiter, Jr., Seymour Tabin, Editors; Robert J. Benes, Thelma L. Brook, Robert Cook, Leonard Hoffman, Daniel C.